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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year FEnded 31 August 2025
This Trustees' Report includes the additional content required of larger charities.

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report. of the charitable company
for the year ended 31 August 2023, The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report, and a directors' report
under company law.

3t Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust (the Trust) operates 19 Catholic Primary Academics and 4 Catholic
Secondary Academics in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. The Academies have a combined pupil capacity of 9,104 and
had a roll of 8,656 (excluding nursery) as per the October 2024 census.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Trust is & company limited by guarantee and an exernpt charity. The charitable company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees of the Trust are also the Diractors of the charitable
company for the pwposes of company law. The charitable company operates as St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy
Trust.

Details of the Trusiees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved ave included in the Reference
and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members” liahility

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound
up while heishe is a member, or within one year after hefshe ceases to be 2 member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

Trustees' indenmities

The Trust has purchased the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement {RPA) which is extended o indemnity
Trustees. From 1 September 24123, the Trust purchased cquivalent insurance from Zurich Municipal.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Bourd ol Diteclors is coustituted a3 laid down in its Articles of Association. The Dincesan Rishop appoints Foundation
Directors for a term of 4 vears (or shorter if specified at the time of appointment)

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Education Service provides a significant amount of training for Trustees thut Trustees
are expected to attend. The training takes place throughout the year on a variety of governanee topics.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Organisational structure

The Board is responsible for the core functions:

- ensuring clarity of vision, Catholic ethos and strategic direction;

- holding the Chiel Executive Officer (CEQ), wha is also the Accounting OlTicer, o account for the educational performance
of the Trust's Academies and their pupils, and the performance management of staff,

- overseeing the linancial performance of the Trust and making sure ils money is well spent.

The Board has 6 committees: Curriculum and Standards, Finance and Tstates, HR and Staffing, Pay and Performance
Management, Catholic Life and Mission, and Audit, Risk and Governance.

Each Academy has a Local Governing Body {LGB). The principal vole of the LGB is to support and challenge (he
Principal/Headteacher with a focus on the Catholic Life and mission ot the Academy, standards, and the monitoring of the
School Development Plan.

The Baoard appoints the CEO, o whom it delegates responsibility for delivery of the vision and stralegy, and will hold the CEO
to account for the conduct and performance of the Trust, including the performance of the Academies within the Trust, and for
its financial management, In turn, the CEO line manages other senior executives and the PrincipalsiHeadtcachers, selling their
Largets and performance managing them.

The Principal/Headleacher al each Academy is responsible for the day to day management ol the Academy and is munaged by
the CEO but reports to the LGB on matters which have been delegated to it including monitoring and scrutiny of the School
Development Plan.

Headteachers have delegated authority to approve single items of expenditure up to £2,000. Trust Central Team Oflicers
approve expenditure over £2,000 and all staffing appointments. Board approval is required for expenditure above £50,000.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Recommendations for CEQ and Executive cost of living pay spine changes are made by the Diocesan Executive Advisory
Review Commitiee o the Trust Board of Directors. This is a sub-commitice af the Members and comprises:

« the Chairs of the Trust Boards of the three Catholic Multi Academy Trusts operating within the Diocese of Nottingham

= The Episcopal Vicar far Fducation

« Trust Director of People (as advisor)

« NRCDES Director of Cducation Service (as advisor)

Following robust performance management, progression up the pay spine is agreed by the Trust’s Pay and Performance
Commillee. For stafl not on the exeeutive pay spine, cost of living rises arc aligned with the Government recommendations on
Teachers® pay or Local Government negotiations for Support StafT pay.



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trast

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Trade union facility time {as icported for the periad T April 2024 to 31 March 2025)

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union | Full-time equivalent employee number
offictals during the relevant peried

8 8

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of

employees
0% &
1%-30% s
51%-99% )
100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

2025 2024
£ E
Provide the wotal cost of fucility ime 12,727 5284
Provide the total pay bill 50,375,000 45.121,091
Provide the percentage of'the total pay bill spent on facility time, caleulated as: { Lotal cost
of facility time = total pay bill } x 100 - -
Paid trade union activities
2015 24
Ya Yo
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours
calculated as: ( total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant union officials
during the relevant period + total paid facility time hours ) x 100 14 3

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

The Truslt has a very close relationship with the Nottinghum Roman Catholic Diocese, and in particular the Nottingham Roman
Catholic Diocesar Fducation Service (NRCDES), NRCDES provides {al cost) services that can only be delivered by them,
which provide essential functions fundamenta! to the religious character and ethos of the Trust.

The Trust is related to the NoWingham Diocesan Catholic Youth Service (INDCYS) who provide (at cost) residentia! trip
opportunities to The Briars centre for our schools.

The Trust alse has a very close relationship with the 2 other Catholic Mu'li Academy Trusts within the Nottingham Roman
Catholic Diocese:

= 8L Ralph Sherwin Catholic Mult-Academy Trust
* Our lady of lourdes Catholic Multi-Academy Trust

The 3 Trusts have a shared payroll function, shared Dircetor ol Peaple and share the costs of the HR, Payroll and firance
system.

Relevant related party transaclions {since | April 2019) have been declared to (or zpproval sought from) the Department for
Education,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 20235 (continued)

Engagement with employees (incleding disabled persons)

During the year, the Trust provided every employee the opportunity to complete a staft survey that sought feedback to help
Academies and the whole Trust improve. The survey seught responscs on a range of topics including the Catholic life at the
Academy. how individuals felt about work and things that impacted workload, training and development opportunitics, and
awareness of the whistleblowing arrangements. The Fxecutive Leadership and Board have been sble to use the survey results
to continually adapt and improve the Trust.

The CEQ has regularly recorded video messages for all staft’ lo view providing key updales on the Trust. Weelkly newsletters
are sent to each Academy with eperational matters that [leadteachers disserminate 1o relevant staff.

The Trust carries out duties in relution to the Equality Act 2010 by promoting equality of oppotiunity for disabled people:
pupils, stall, parents, carers and other people wha use the Trust or may wish to.

The Trust is fortunate to employ a talented and dedicated workforee. Staft, parents and pupils are valued by what they bring to
the Trust community. All our staff are committed to empowering our pupils to make positive contributions by opening
opportunitics to learning. The Trust is committed to prohibit discrimination on the grounds of disability in all employment
matters, this includes seeking t increase employment opportunities for people who have a disability and to cnsurc that its
seernitment and sefection processes are fully accessible. Applications tor posts are monitored for compliance with the CEqualicy
Act and reasonable adjustrments made for stulT where identified.

All Trust stall. pupils, visitors and contraclors are expected to treat people with disabilities with respect. If an individual feels
that they have been discriminated against or harassed on the grounds of disability, they will be encouraged to report Lhe
incidert and will be supporled in doing so.

[0 the built environment, where building projects and alterations ave being undertaken, we will always seek to dentify and
develop in areas lo be mare welceming and enabling 1o people with disabilities.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The Trust works with many supplices and olher key stakeholders that are key to achieving the strategic objectives of the Trust.
Regular communication is received fram our key funder, the Department for Education, thal the Trust acknowledges and acts
on where necessary. We have forged and maintain positive relationships with key suppliers with the aim of improving the
service to our Academics. Where appropriate, we will meet on a periodic basis with key suppliers. We have a policy to pay
suppliers within their payment terms or 30 days. assuming our requirement for a purchase order number tw be guoted on
invoices 1s adhered w.

As a not-for-profit organisation, our Academies also develop and maintain relationships with their local communities and
Parishes. Some Academies have supported caommunity initiatives such as food banks. which have been well received. Many
Academies have ‘parents and friends’ associations who work tirelessly raising funds for the benefit of their local Academy.
The community and Parish support far our Academics is much appreciated by the Board.

Objectives and activities
Qbjects and aims

The Trust's objective is resiricted to the advancement of the Catholic religion in Lthe Diocese by such means as the Diocesan
Bishop may think fit and proper, In particular, the establishing. maintaiaing, carrying on. managing and developing of Catholic
schools conducted in accordance wilh the principics, and subject to the regulations ard discipline el the Catholic Church.

Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust continues to facilitate, nurture, protect and challenge its schools ta provide the best education and care that we can.
We tocus on the notion of “making the future better thun the past” trough:

» Children and young people leaving our schools with Lhe best possidle life chances (reflected in strong outcomes).

» Children and young people having the tools they need o contribute  wider society and o live their lives in g fruitfal way.

» Children and young people respecting others. having a sirong moral drive, and both understanding and heneriting from the
spiritual element in their lives.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)
Ourkey achievements for 2024-23 included:

» Strong / very strong outcomes & life chances for our young people:

* Altainment 2t K54 {there was no Progress 8 measure in 2025) was significandly above national average for the Trust:

- Attendance is ahoversignificantly above national average in our schools: our primary schools’ average attendance is 95.26%
against 94.3% nattonally; our secondary schools® average attendance is 95.45% against 90% nationally;

= Destinations: there are currently 752 pupils in Year 1] across our four secondary schoals. 750 have a clearly defined
progression pathway for post-16. The twa pupils whose palhways are still in development have highly complex needs and are
attending the Hospital Schoal. Both will have pathways in place appropriate to their needs, abilities and aspirations.

+ Chaplainey hub model Tully stafled for the start of 202425 for the first time: ‘Living Laudato Si’ established in all schools
building on the Eeo Roadmap.

= AlLOfsted/CST gradings good or better (significant improvement since 2018 when there were several RI gradings in hoth
areus).

+ Although under very significant pressure, well-managed finances with reserves intacl and a high standard of TCFP across the
CMAT

* Very strong Health & Safety audil feedhack during 2024-25 (RPA).

* Capital & estates S-year plan established.

= Cross-CMAT services very well-established including fulitime Safeguarding Director and Educational Psychologist, and part
time SEND lead, Behaviour & Attendance lead and Early Years lead.

* Positive feedback thraugh annual Headteacher survey. and half-termly pulse surveys of staft,

* We run one uf the most suceessiul Teaching School Hubs in the country, and have built an effective SEND & Inclusion Flub
partnership with a local special school (Birchwood).

Public benefir

The Trust has complied with the Charities Act 2011 Lo have due regard Lo the Charity Commission’s public benefit guidance
when exercising powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant.

Tn sciting our objectives and planning our activities the Board have carefully considered the Charity Commission’s gencral
suidance un public benefit

[n particular, the Trust has provided Catholic education to over 8,600 pupils throughout Leicester. Leicestershive, and Rutland
arid enabled Uie academy buildings and sporting facilities (0 be nsed hy the public,

Serategic Report

Achievements and performance

Pupil outcomes:
Key Stage 2 (KS2):

* Reading % at Expecledt was above national in 12 out of 19 Primary schools

* Writing % at Expecied—+ was ahove national in $ cul of 19 Primary schools

* Malhs % at Expected+ was above national in 11 our of 19 Primary schools

= Combined % at Expected+ was above national in 10 out of 19 Primary schools

Key Stage 4 (KS4);

- Antainment 8 measures show improvement for 3 out of 4 Secondary schaols in 2025 compared to 2024, The overall Teust
position improved from 4.8 in 2019, maintained 3.2 since 2023 inlo 2024, and has now risen (o 5.45 in 2025.

* ‘Basies’ at 4+ and S+ improved in 3 out of 4 Secondary schools i 2023, significantly at 5—.

» It should be noted that there was no Progress § score in 2025 due Lo the Covid-19 pandemic meaning that this cohort of
vaung people were not assessed at K82,

» Attainment for disadvantaged pupils across the Trust improved from 3.7 in 2019 to 4.1 in 2023, o 4.5 in 2024, and has been
sustained at 4.5 in 2025,

Key Stage 5 (KS3):

* A*-C grades in the 3 Post-16 settings were significantly improved in 2025 with all three achieving above national aversge in
the measuremest.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Catcholic life and Mission:

« There were four Catholic School Inspections 2024-23: three schools retained Lheir designations as ‘Good’; one impraved
from ‘Requires Improvement’ w ‘Good™. It was notable that *Catholic Life and Mission™ was rated as *Quistanding” In all
schools,

» The St Thomas Aquinas feast day was very successlul in Junuary, bringing logether young people from all of our schools for
a concelebrated Mass al English Martyrs' in Leicester.

- “Living Laudalo Si* saw over half the schools in the Trust achieve the award in the first year., a number with distinction.

« Catholic life and mission and collective worship have. again, improved in terms of consistency und quality across the trusl
this vear. This is demonstrated through our own assessments and the CSIs/monitoring visits.

Safegnarding:

« The Safeguarding Director and Director of Business Services continue 1o regularly review all school’s Single Central
Records, providing assurance lo the Executive and the Trust Board, and identitying any gaps for schools to deal with.

« The Safeguarding Director remains on hand to offer support, advice and counscl to Headteachers and D515 when specitic
issues arise.

- Headteachers and DSLs have been unanimaus in their positive feedback and appreciation of the Safeguarding provision again
this year. In particular, immediate access to advice and support has given confidence in this key arca. In the Headteacher
Survey, all Headleachers acknowledged the quality of advice they received.

Training and Leicestershire and Rutland Teaching School Hub (LRTSH):

= The LRTSH has tained 407 Early Career Teachers and 330 Mentors (his year. 190 schools have been suppotted through the
Appropriate Body function of the Hub and the satis faction rate for specialist NPQs hus been 94%. Nearly 400 Leachers have
been engaged in some way by the Hub, reaching huge numbers of children and young people.

« The NPQs are available for teachers and leaders who want W develop their knowledge and skills in school leadership and
specialist areas of teaching practice:

a. Senior Leadership

b. Headship

¢. Leading Early Years

d. Leading Bchaviour and Culture

e. Leading Teaching

f. l.eading Teacher Development

g. Leading Literacy

h. Leading Primary Maths

i. Early Headship Coaching Ofer

« LRTSII continues to work with a number of partners including NRCDLS, the other dincesan CMATs, other Teaching School
Hubs (especially Northampton and Leicester City's), Ambition Institute and the DIE.

= Beyond the Teaching Schoot Hub. courses have been delivered o governors, Headleachers, senior leaders, leachers and
supporl stall.

Governance:

= A new Governance Lead & Company Secretary was appointed in May 2023,

« The number of Foundation Directors was mainlained in the 2024/23 academic year. One Director resigned at the end of
September 2025, and work is underway to appoint 4 suitable veplacement.

- The Board has a range of expertise. with experience in Finance. Audir, IR, Education and Catholic Life.

- We have continued our programme of Chairs” Symposia, focusing this year on Catholic Lile, employee growth development,
outcomes. estates, LGB effective practice, health & safety audits, LGB use of data, Ofsted readiness, finance challenges,
safeguarding. Symposia sesstons are well attended with high levels ol engagement and interaction,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Yeuar Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

The use of central school improvement resources:

= Around £633k of central funding has been budgeted and spent on school improvement activities during 2024-25, with key
areas identified below:

* The Trust Feast Day celebrations at the end of January involving all young people and staff from across the Trust. We
embruced the theme ol the Jubilee Year’s “Pilgrims of Hope™ and focused on owr role as such in our communities and the
wider world. Mass was celebrated by Fr Simon Gillespic, and members of the Executive Teamn visited schools to undertake
live broadcasts.

= The Trust has continued to resource additional roles in school improvement throughout 2024-23: a Group SENCO; u
secondary CMAT Lead of Maths; un Rarly Years lead; a Rehaviour and Attendance lead; and the Director of Safeguarding.

* The Trust has retained the services of Cducational Psychology provision for all schools. This service has covered stafl
training, pupil assessment und report writing and preparation and support for EHCP bids.

* Funding was made available for a range of Teaching and Learning projects run by staff across our schools. These were built
on collaboralion across schoels and enabled members of staff to work together around aspeets of action rescarch, curriculum
delivery, assessment and/or moniloring.

Ofsted:

* There were three Section 8§ (ungraded) inspections during 2024-25, which saw the Scheols maintain their status as “good”,
* There was one Scction 5 (graded) inspection during 2024-25, which saw the school maintain its status as “outstanding”.

Key financial performance indicators

KPI Target Actual 2024/2025
Current Ralio {current assets divided by current liabilities) Greater than 1.0 2.03

Staff costs as a % of income Less than 30% 84.8%

Revenue reserves (days) (reserves divided by appros. daily expenditare) Minimum 18 days 12.4

The “staff costs as a % of income’ is above the 80% KPI target (after adjusting to remove School Trip income and adding in
noliona] stafl’ spending on outsourced cleaning and catering). Meeting the KPI remains challenging, however the Trust
continues to carefully review stalling requests when someone leaves and reduce cost where possible.

The revenue reserves KPI is below the (8-day target. The Trust is working to restore reserves hack o 18 duys by caretully
reviewing staffing requests when someonc leaves, maximise interest ezrned from cash, and reviewing non-stafT contracts with
the aim oi reducing cost / eliminating elements that are no longer needed.

Further information on the reasons for the challenging financial siluation are provided in the Financial Review.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquirics, the Roard of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequare resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fature. For this reason, it continues 1o adopt the going concern basis in
prepuring the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern hasis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

FPromoting the success of the Trust

Trust Directors recognise that owr Academies, Staff and Pupils have a significant effect on the overall suceess of the Trust. The
Trust works very closely with cach Headteacher on strategies to improve education performance and emplayee satisfaction.
The Chief Exeeutive Officer will regularly write or provide a video message for all stafl on relevant topics, along with
providing robust support tor Academies with any adverse press interest by way of'a Trust statement.

We intreduce initiatives to help every Acaderny Lo be the *Academy of choice’ lor local communities, end Lo our Trust W be
an *employer of choice’. Initiatives include showcasing the excellent work and outcomes at our Academies and being a caring
and understanding employer in a positive environment of expecting high staff performance.

The Trust’s decisions are tocused on continually improving educational standards. decreasing the number of vacant places in
our Academnics and having a high performing happy workforce.

Qur Marketing and Communications Lead works to publicise both individual school and Trust-wide successes through both
social and conventional media.

Financial review

Most of the Trust’s income is obrained from the Department for Education in the form of recurrent grants, the use ol which is
restricled ta particular purposes. Around §4% of income is spenl on statfing, with the remaining 16% spent on maintenance.
educational resources and staff training. This cxpenditure cnables the Trust o fulfil its objective of providing Catholic
cducation to aver 8,600 pupils, for example by enabling pupils to be taught by qualified teachers and supported by teaching
assistants, premises staff and administrative stafl. The funding enables Lhe academics © be cquipped with 1CT and other
resources that enhance the learning environment, The grants and associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
statenent of financial acliviligs,

The Trust also receives Condition Tmprovement Funding for fixed assets from the Department for Cducation. This funding
enables academy buildings 1o be improved and larger muintenance wark undertaken. The grants are shown in the restricted
fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. The restricted fixed asset fund is reduced by annual depreciation
charges over the expected useful ile of the assels concerned.

The combined rastricted general funds, excluding pension reserves, plus unrestricted funds show an in-year deficit of £0.867m.
The original budget lorceast an in-year deficit of £1.21m and after taking intentional rescrve spending into account, the actual
positian is an improvement to that ariginally forecast. The actual reserves (restricted general funds. excluding pension reserves,
plus unrestricted reserves) as al 31 August 2023 was £2.2m.

The main reasons tor the in-vear deficit are:

« Inadequate funding received to pay for special educational needs provision (estimate to be aver £1 million]).

= 110 lewer pupils on the Oclober 2023 census compared to Oclober 2022 leading W less tunding (eslimate to be around
£400,000).

« Funding for (ree school meals / universal infant tree school meals inadequate to caver the cost of the meals (estimated o be
over £100,000).

+ An overall reduction of funding for Schools as a result of Logcal Authorities adjusting Tunding via a negative Minimum
Funding Guarantee of £250,000.

Spending an staffing is higher than our KPIL. The main contributory factors are 66% of all teaching stafT being paid on the
upper teacher pay scale, and the cost of Special Fducational Needs Teaching Assistants being signiticantly higher than funding
received. For exarnple, a School located in Leicester received around £21,000 and a Scheol located in Leicestershire received
around £15,000 for providing 32.5hrs of Teaching Assistant Support whereas the cost of providing the support is around
£26.000.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 Angust 2025 (continued)

Mast of the issues highlighted above arc not within the Trast's control as funding rates are set by either the Government or
Local Aulhorities. However, the Trust cantinues to look for ways to increase income und reduee expendilure such as;

* Focusing on marketing our Schools and what they have to offer to Iry and increase pupil numbers.

* Reviewing staffing and class structures ar Schools where pupil numbers have reduced and, wherg practical, not replace stalt
when people leave.

* Implementing strategies to meet Special Cducational Needs within the actual funding being provided.

* Reviewing calering provision, including using group buying power to reduce the cost of food, and considering whether to
bring catering in-house.

Reserves policy

The TrusC's “free reserves™ are its funds alter excluding restricted funds. Free reserves are therefore the resonrees the Trust has
or can make available (o spend for any or all of the Trust’s purposes ance it has met its commitments and covered its other
planned expenditure. More specifically. free reserves represent income to the Trust which can be spent at the discretion ol the
Board in furtherance of any of the Trust’s objects but which has not yet spent, committed or designated.

As at 31 August 2023, Trust reserves are:

£4900
Restricted General Funds 658
Restricted Fixed Asset Funds 11,554
Unrestricted Funds 1,504
Restricted Pension Fund 2
Total reserves 13,716

The table beiow outlines reserves (from the amounts sbove) that are designated for specific purposes:

£'000
Other capital ieg. Devolved Formula Capital, School Condition Allocation) 2,539
Unspent Grants and other donatians {1 year) 84
Universal [nfant Free School Meals (teceived in July *25 for Sept *25-Mar "26) 372
Total 2,995

The latest Local Governinent Pension Scheme (LGPS) actuarial valuation shows a peuasian surplus. U corporate bond yields
al 31 August 2025 are at their highest levels for many years resuiting in higher accounting discount rales at the vear end. This
places a significantly lower value on the pension vbligations compared to the prior vear and will be one of the main reasons a
net asset is now shown. The LGPS is a funded, statatory, defined benefits pension scheme. Cmployer contributions are set
locally every three years, as parl of the LGPS fund ‘riennial valuation. These valuations are carricd oul by the local fund
actuary, appointed by each LGPS fund. Emploxer conwibution vates reflect a number of factors including the employer’s
prolile and the financial position and investment strategy of the parlicular LGPS fund and ensure the scheme's long-lerm
solvency so thal pensions can be paid when they fall due,

The Department for Education has provided a Deparimental guarantee to all LGPS administering authorities in England that in
the cvent ot the closure of the Trust any outstanding LGPS liahilitics that cannot be met by the Trust’s assets will be met by the
DIE.

I'he Trust Board carefully considered the levei of restricted general and unrestricted reserves that should he held. 1t was agreed
thal a minimum of I8 days’ expenditure should be held as reserve 1o provide sufficient working capital. cover delays between
receiving (unding and spending, and deal with any unexpected issues. This equates Lo a targel of approximately £2.9 million
however due to the financial challenges outlined. this is no Ionger being achieved.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Investment policy

The Trust’s Articles (3Cm) gives the Board the power “ro deposit or invest any funds of the Company not immediately
- required for the furtherance of its Objeets (but to invest only after ohtaining such advice from a linancial expert as the
Directors cansider necessary and having regard to the suitability of investments and the need for diversification).”

The Board has agreed investment objectives:

» To achieve best financial return available whilst ensuring thal sceurity ol deposits tukes precedence over reverue
maximisation,

= Omly invest funds surplus o operational need based on all financial commitments being met without the Trust bank account
hecoming overdrawn.

» By complying with chis policy, all investment decisions should be exercised with care and skill and consequently be in the
best interests of the Trust, commanding broad public support.

Principal risks and uncertaintics

The Trust has conducted a comprehensive risk assessment. The main business risks identified are:

= Failure W recruil and retain high quality Catholic Leaders,

- Failure of the CMAT to reeruit sufficient learners Lo make some of ils schools viable

= Failure Lo secure required funding for buildings and maintenance.

» Failure ta ensure that the Trusts financial systems and controls arc maintained.

- Tnereasing number and complexity of pupils with Special Educational Needs in Trust Schools but without adequare funding
to mecel their needs.

A prowing risk is the significant under-funding of Special Educational Needs and Disabilitics (SEND) for Education Health
and Care Plans (EICP) and for pupils whe require 1:1 adult suppert. Per DfE requirements, the ‘Trust is committed to fund the
first £6.000 of SEN provision per pupil, however, is routinely needing lo fund between £7.000 to £15.000 per pupil due to
insufficient funding provided by Central Governmen to Local Authorities (estimated to cost the Trust over £1 million). We
continue Lo look at innovative ways to meet the special needs of pupils as costs increase at a faster vate than funding.

Pupil numbers have been reducing in some of the Trust academies. The main reason can be attributed to a falling birth rate and
there being more school places in the Local Autherity arcas than pupils. The Trust continues to promote and market the
excellent education provision pupils receive at our academies.

The Trust's estate is kept safe and well maintained. The Trust uses specific monitoring software o ensure that key Health and
Safety tasks are compleled by deadlines, This software is movitored every lerm independently by a Trust Board Director who
reports back to the full Board. The Trust contracts with specialists o prepare building condition reports. These reports help
guide the Trust as (0 where to best use the limited capital funding te ensure the estate is well maintained.

The Trust regularly considers risks for the whote Trust and for individual academies. Where risks are likely Lo materialise or do
materialise rapid action is taken.

There are no significant credit. cash flow or liguidity risks. The main financial inswuments that are dealt with are bank
balances, cash, trade creditars and very limited trade (and other) debtors. Debiors represent approximately 0.3% of the Trust's
annaat turnover.

Fundraising

The Trast has not used professional fundraisers, and fundraisiag undertaken during the year was monitored by the Trust.
Individual academies raise funds from local parishioners, friends and family known as “planned giving’. Such donations are
completely voluntary with no pressure put on anyone to donate. Funds raised are used for the benetits of pupils and their
educazion.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Strcamlined Encrgy and Carbon Reporiing
UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 01 September 2024 to 31 August 2025

2025 2024
Energy consumption used L caleulute emissions (kWh) 9.940,158 9,506,004
Energy consumption break down (KWh)
Gas 7,259,499 6.815.492
Electricity 2,576,832 2,597.082
Transport fuel 44209 25.629
Transport minibuses 59618 67,801
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Owned Lransporl - mini-buses 1541 17.15
Gus consumption 1328.00 1247.00
Total scope | 1343.41 1264.15
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Purchased electricity 456.00 538.00
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2Ze
Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 10.22 5.94
Tatal gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 1809.63 1808.09
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.21 .21

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:
We have foliowed the 2019 HM Gavernment Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting
Protacol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2025 UK Governmenl’s Conversion Faetors tor Company Reparting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the recommended ratio for
the sector,

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency
We have replaced some windows and boilers. We have upgraded many lights o LED. We are doing a lot of eco-wark with
pupils Lo encourage energy reduction, We hope 1o have more smart meters installed over the coming vear.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustces' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Planx for future periods

The Trust does not intend o grow in size any further. Future aimy are 1o increase pupil numbers; continually improve the
quality of education provision and outcomes tor our pupils and update and improve our estate and [T. We also plan to tackle
the financial challenges by reducing stafting costs, being innovative with meeting Special Educational Needs, and reviewing
our Catering provision to reduce costs to minimise the impact af the inadequate funding.

Auditor
Tnsofar as the Trustees are aware:

= there is ro relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

»  the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit intarmation
and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Trustees’ report, incorporating a Strategic Report, approved by order of the Members of the Board of Trustees as the Company
Directors on 15 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs S%Nomn
Chair of Trustees
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Muld Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, finarciul and otherwise. However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of fuilure to uchieve business objectives. and can provide only reasonable and not
absolule assurance against material misstatement or Joss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Governance Guide.

The Trustees have delegated the day-to-day responsibility to N Lockyer, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls
conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and
responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement hetween St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Acaderny Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The iformation on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Statement of
Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year. Attendunce during the year al
meetings of the Board of Trustees was as (ollows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
Rev Fr R | Imoni (resigned 30 Seprember 2024) 0 1
Mrs M C Jane 4 4
Dr M Mihovilovie 2 4
Mrs 8 ] Noon 4 4
Mr T K Smilh 2 4
Mrs [ Wilson-Mbah 3 4
Mrs I D Anderson 3 4
Mr D Halt 4 4
Mr B Underwood 3 4
Mr J G T Morgan (resigned 30 Scptember 20235) [ 4

The Board ol Directors’ composition has changed during the year with one Trustee vesignation. The Trust is very gratcful for
the many unpaid hours of time that all Directors have put in lo undertake their governance duties.

Board meetings are held in person, with options [or people to join remotely if needed. The Roard oversees all aspects of the
Trusl’s operations, receiving reports on educational performance, safeguarding, health and safely, premises, projecls, finance,
risk and governance.

The Finance and Estates Committee receive management accounts for the Trust every month that includes information on
actual spending compared to buduels, cashflow, debts, pupil numbers and capital projects. The management accounts are also
made available to all Board Directors. This commiltee and the full Trust Board has visibility, full awareness and oversight of
the Trust 3-year plan.

The Board of Directors has continued to review and improve the data and reporting it received during the academic vear,
enabling better scrutiny of performance. und has a stronger base for decision making.

Conflicts of interest are carelully managed with all Beard Directors required to complete and keep up to date their register of
interests using the Trust’s online governance system.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Governance reviews

The Nottingham Roman Cathotic Diocesan Education Service (NRCDES) continue to oifer a tull programme ol training
sessions for local governing hodies. Regular training sessions for Trust Directors facilitated by the NRCDES continue 10 be
olfered, with sessions taking place on a range of legal and statutory responsibilities. A Local Governor skills audit was
completed by NRCDES at the end ol the last academic year, and adjustments Lo the training oller will be made as necessary. A
Director skills audit is planned to take place in 2025/26.

Following the appointment of the Governance Lead, a Trust wide external review of governance is due.
The Trust Board approved 2 new vision and mission statement during the 2024/25 academtic year, and this has been rolled out

to all Trust schools. The new document will enable a focused approach of the Trust’s aspirations and clearly visualises the
curtent position and future plans.

The Finance and Csiares Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board . Its purpose is to ensure that the Trust's finances are
managed effectively. Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Meetings Ouiofa
Trustee attended possible
Mrs 8 J Noon 4 4
Mr T K Smith | 4
Mr D Hall 3 4

The AudiL Risk and Governance Committee is a sub-committee ol the mam Board. Its purpose is lo assist the Directors n
fulfilling their oversight into the quality, reliability and integrity of the financial starements. Attendance at meetings during the
vear was as [ollows:

Meetings Qut of a
Trustee attended possible
Mrs S 1 Noen 3 3
Mr T K Smith 2 3
Mr B Underwood 2 3
dMr D Hall 3 3

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers zood value in the use
of public resources. The Accounting Ofticer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcotnes, as well a3 eatates salety and managemenl, achieved in return for the laxpayer resources received.

The Accounting QMcer considers how the TrusUs use of its resources has provided good value for money during cach
academic vear, and reports to the Board where value for money can be improved. including the use of benchmarking data
where avallable.

The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

- reviewing and challenging staffing costs for all new and replacement posts;

- regularly reviewing where cash reserves are kept o maximise interest;

- reviewing insurance pravision, and making a suving by changing provider;

- overseeing the use of capital funding to ensure that all condition survey category *DI° issues ave resolved as quickly as
possible;

- meeting weekly with the Business Services Directar to be updated on estates/Health and Safety issues and to obtain assurance
that the Trust's ustale is safe, weli maintained and complies with regulations.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed te manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminace all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identi fy and prioritise the risks (o the achievement of
Trust policies, aims and ohjectives, 10 evaluale the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiendy, effectively and econemically. The system of internal control has been in place in the
Trust for the year ended 31 August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annusl report and timancial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, (inancial and compliance
controls that have been implemented to mitigale thosc risks, The Board is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for
identilying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks thal has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board.

The risk and control framework

The Trust’s system ol internal financial conwol is based on a framework of regular management information and

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability, In particular, it

includes;

= comprchensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periedic financial reports which are reviewed
and agreed by the Board ol Trustecs;

= regular reviews by the Finance and Estac's Commillee of reports, which indicate financial performance against the
forceasts und of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

+  setting targets o measure {inancial and other performance;

*  clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

= identification and management of risks.

Duncan and Toplis were appointed us internal audilor for the period | September 2024 to 31 August 202S. This option has

been chosen because it provides a level of independent assurance that might not be possible if the Trust were to employ
someone or use a Trustee/peer CFO.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and ather matters and performing a range of checks an
the tinancial and other systems. In particular, the checks carvied out in the current period included:

+ tesling school cash receipts
*  lesting of compliance with Sixth Form Bursary lunding rules
= testing the school census returns

On &n “as compleled” busis. the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustecs, through the Audil, Risk and Governance
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees™ financiul responsibilities
and annually prepares an annual summary report o the commiltee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations. and conclusions to help the committce consider actions and assess YEAr on year progress,

The planned schedule of wark was complered, and 10 material control or other weaknesses were reported by the incernal
auditors.



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, N Lockyer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the sysiem of internal control. Buring

the year in question the review has been intormed by:

+ the work of the external audilor;

»  the work of Duncan and Toplis internal audil reviews:

« the work of the Exceulive Dircctors and Managers within Trust who have responsibility for the developrment and
maintenance of the internal control framework:

« areview of Financial Management and Governance using the ESFA’s school resource management self evaluation ool

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review ol the system of inlernal contral by

the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion
Based on the advice of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Board of Trustees is of the
opinion that the Frust has adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees as Company Directors on 13 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

i\.fl.r N Lockycrm
Chief Executive Dfficer

Lol

Mrs S ¥ Noon
Chair of Trustees
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As Accounting Officer of 8t Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust T confirm that T have had due regard to the
(ramewark of authorities gaverning regulasity, propriety and compliance, including the trust’s funding agreement wilh DI(E,
and the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including responsibilities for estates salely and management. | have
also considered my responsibiliey w nolly the Trust Board of Trustees and DIE of material irregularity. impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding. including for ustates safely and management.

[ confirm that . and the Board of Trustees are able to identily any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the Trust,
or material non-compliance with the framework of antharities.

I confirm that ne instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered Lo date. 1 any
instances are identilicd after the dale of this statement, these will be notified to the Board and ESFA.

N bl

MrN Lockymz ...........
Accounting Office

I5 December 2025
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are alsa the Divectors ol the charilable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' repott and the financial statetnents in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by
the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees (o prepare financial stalements for each (inancial year. Under company law, the Trustees
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a wue and fair view of the state of affaics of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, tor
that periad. Tn preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

- seleet suitable sccounting policies and apply them consistently;
- ohserve the methods and principles in the Charitics SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direetion 2024 1o 2025;
+  make judgments and accounting estimates thar are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been foilowed, subject to any marterial deparoures disclosed and
explained in the financial staternents; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it s inappropriale o presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They ave also responsible tfor
saleguarding the assets ol the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conducl and operalion the charitable company applies financial and other
controls, which conform with the requirements bath of propriety and of goed financial management. They are also respansible
lor ensuring granls received trom the ESFA/DIE have been applicd for the purposes intended.

The Trustecs arc responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ (rom legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board on 15 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs S ¥Noon
Chair of Truslees
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor’s Repart on the Financial Statements to the Members of $t Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited Lhe financial statements of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Mulli Academy Trust (the 'Trust’) for the year ended
31 August 2025, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities for the vear ended 31 August 2025 (including Income
and Expenditure Account). Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2025, Statement of Cash Flows tor the year ended 31 August 2023,
and Notes 1o the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charitics SORDP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issucd by the
Departinent for Cducation.

[n our opinian the financial statements:

*  give a tuc and fair view of the state of the Trust's uffuirs as al 31 August 2023 and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure. for the year then ended;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Preclice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Educalion.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with [nternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilitics under those standards are Further described in the Auditor's responsibilitics (or the andil of the financial
stateroents section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial stalements in the UK, including the FRC's Frhical Standard. and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe thar the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficicnt and
appropriate (o provide a basis tor our opinion.

Conceluslons relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the #oing concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Bascd on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast signiticant doubt on the Traat's ability W continue us a guing concern o a period of at
teast velve months from when the original financial statements were authorised for issue.

Our responsibilitics and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect (o zoing concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report. >

Other information (covers the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' report and Strategic Report and the
Governance statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the ather information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
reporl, ether than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon, Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and. except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our reparl, we do not express any form ot
assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financia! statements, our respansibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
vonsider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audil or otherwise appears to be malerially misstated, Tt we identify such material incensistencies or apparent materiul
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is @ material misstatement in the financial staterments or a matetial
misstatement of the other informalion. Tf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude Lhat there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required (o reportl that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Viembers of St Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, bascd on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the informarion given in the Stwategic Report and Trustees' veport for the financial year for which the financial statements
arc prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+  the Strategic Repord and Truslees' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exceplion
In the light of owr knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course ol the audil, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Trustees' report.,

We have nothing ta report in respeet of the following matlers where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report o you if, in
our opinion:

+ adequats accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audil have not heen reccived from branches nol
visited by us; or

= the financial stalements are not in agreement with the accounling records and relurns; or

= certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specitied by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of 'Trustees

As explained more lully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set cut on page 21, the Trustees are responsible for the

preparation of the financial statements and for being satistied that they give a tue and lair view. and for such internal control

as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that arc free (rom material
misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability o continue as a going
cancem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Trustees either intend Lo liguidate the Trust or W coase operations, or have no realistic allernative bul to do so.

Auditor Respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misslalement, whether due to traud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level ol assurance, but is not a guaranise that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually ov
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecoremic decisions of users taken on the busis of these
financial statements.

The extent w which our procedures are capable of delecling irregularilies, including [raud is detailed below:

- Discussions with management, including consideration ol known or suspected instances of non-compliance held.

- Challenging assumplions and judgements made within significant accounting estimates and judgements such as depreciation
and the local government pension scheme liability.

- Tesling of income, bank, purchases and payroll, svstems and controls and providing conclusions on the regularity of samples
chosen.

- Identification of key lasys and regulations centeal to the Academics operations and review ol compliance with such laws
including a review of the Academy Trust Handbook 2024 and correspondence with solicitors o identify any on-geing
licigation.

- Testing of journal entries and potential override of systems.

RBecanse of the inherent limitations ol an acdil, there 1s 4 risk thal we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to
a muaterial misstatement in the financial statements or non-compiiance with regulation. The risk increases the more that
compliance with a law or regulation is removed [rom the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we
will be less likely to became aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irtegularities occurring
due to fraud ruther than eror, as [raud involves intentional conceaiment, {orgery collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities is  available on the Financial Reporling Council’'s  website  at:
wwsw, fre.or.ul/anditorsrespansibilities. This deseription forms part of our auditor’s report.

-
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St Thomas Aguinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of St Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust (continued)

Use of our report

This repart is made solely to the Members, as 1 body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state o the Members those matters we are required W stale © them in an
auditor’s report and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume responaihility to
anyone ather than the Trust and its Members, as a body, for our audit work, {or this report, or tor the opinions we have formed.

Do
Y

Adzm Millson ACA {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Porrester Boyd Robson Limited, Statutory Auditor

Wayniflete Housc
139 Eastgate
Louth
Lincolnshire

LNLI9QQ

13 December 2025
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St Thomas Aquinas Cathoelic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regulariiy to St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi
Academy Trust and Secretary of State for Education

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 October 2024 and further to the requirements of the
Department for Education (DtE) as included in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountants of Acadermy Trusts, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has
come 1o our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure dishursed and income received by St Thomas
Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust during the period | September 2024 o 31 August 2025 have not been applicd to the
purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transuctions do net conform to the authoerities which govern them.

This report is made solely 8t Thomas Aguinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and the Sceretary of State for Education in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to St Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State {or Education those mallers we are required Lo state in 4 report and
for to other purpose. To the fullest extent permited by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ocher than St
Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, tor our wark, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Board of Trustees's Accounting Officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible. under the requirements of the Board of Trustees's funding agreement with the Secretary
of State for Education dated 29 June 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant trom 1 September 2024, tor ensuring that
expendimre dishursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial Lransactions
canform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for (his engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and are to
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement fetter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts
Direction 2024 1o 2023, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our werk which suggests
that in all material respects, expendilure disbursed and income received during Lhe yeur [rom 1 Seplember 2024 10 31 Augusl
2025 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial wansactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reparting Accountant
of Acaderny Trusts issued by DL, which requires a limited assurance engagement as set out in our engagement letter.

The objective ol a limited assurance engagement is Lo perform such procedures as to oblain information and explanations in
arder to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limiled in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does nol
cnabic us to obtain assurance thal we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do nol express a posilive opinion.

(=18

Our engagement includes examination. on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the Trust's income
and expenditure.

The work undertaker to draw lo our conclusion includes:

»  evalualing the systems and coulrol environment;

«  assessing the risk of irvegularity, impropricty and non-compliance;

- confirming the activities of the Academy are in keeping with the Academy's framework and the charitable

ohjcctives; and

- obtaining representations from the Accounting Officer and Key Management Personnel.

n
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

I[ndependent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi
Academy Trust and Secretary of State for Education (continued)

Canclusion

I the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expendinuce
disbursed and income reccived during the year from 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 hay not been applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial ransactions do not conform 1o the authorities which govern them.

Adam Millson ACA
For and on behalf of Torrester Boyd Robsen Limited, Chartered Accountants

Waynflete House
139 Euslgate
Louth
Lincolnshire
LN119QQ

15 December 2025
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2025
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Unrestricted Restrieted  Restricted Fixed 2024/25
Funds General Fuunds Asset Funds Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Tncome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2 123 - 2,361 2.684
Other trading activities 4 2.614 138 - 2.752
Investoents g 208 - - 298
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Academy Trust's
educational operations 3 830 $7,378 - 38,408
Teaching School Hub 3 280 462 - 742
Total 4,145 58,178 2,561 64,884
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 6 39 12 - 51
Charitable activities:
Academy Trust educational operations 7 2.549 58.686 2,892 64,127
Teaching School Hub 6 ) 599 1 €05
Total 2,593 59,297 2,893 64,783
Net income(expenditure} 1,552 (1.119) (332} 101
Transfers between funds {2,294) 2,005 289 -
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on delined
benefit pension schemes 25 - {101 - (LOL1)
Net movement in deficit (742) (125} (43} (910}
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward at 1
Septernber 2024 2,246 783 11.597 14,626
Total funds carried torward at 31
August 2025 1,504 658 11.554 13,716
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Naote

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Other trading activities
Investrments

L I S )

Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy Trust's
educational operations 3
Teaching School Hub 3

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds 6
Charitable activities:
Academy Trust educational operations
Teaching School Hub

A~

Taolal
Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/{losses) on delined
benefit pension schemer 23

Net movement in (deficit)/funds
Reconciltation of fands

Total funds brought forward at 1
Seplember 2023

Total funds carried forward at 31
August 2024

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Fixed 2023/24
Funds General Funds Asset Funds Total
£ (00 £ 000 £000 £ 000
95 - 2,360 24335
2.034 38 - 2.072
330 - - 350
893 54,283 - 35,178
289 446 - 733
3.643 54,767 2,360 60,770
36 3 - 39
2427 53,933 1,908 60.268
4 530 - 33
2,467 36,466 1,008 60,841
1,176 (1,699 452 (7T1)
{2.500) 2,445 55 -
- (720) - (720)
{1.324) 26 507 (791)
3,370 757 11.090 13,417
2,246 783 11,597 14,626




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

(Registration number: 08090890)
Balanee Sheet as at 31 August 2025

2025 2024
Note £000 £4000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 9.019 8,821
Current assets
Debrors {3 2,401 1.903
Cash at bank and in hand 6,703 7.933
9.166 9.836
Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one vear 14 (4,469) (4.025)
Net curtent assels 4.697 5.807
Total assets less current liabilities 13,716 14,628
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than ene year 135 = (2)
Net assels excluding pension assel 13.716 14,626
Delined benelit pension scheme asset/(liability) 23 N =
Total net assets 13,716 14,626
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted general tund 16 638 783
Restricted (ixed asset fund 16 11.554 11,597
Pension rescrve 16 - -
12.212 12,380
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 16 1.504 2.246
Total funds 13,716 14,626

The financial stalements on pages 27 ta 57 were approved by the Trustees, and autharised for issue on 13 December 2025 and
signed on their behalf by:

\F&]\foo«.

Mrs S Noon
Chair of Trustess
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2025

2025 2024
Note £ 000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 19 (3.057) (3.580)
Cash flows from investing activities 20 1,893 1,634
Cash flows from financing activitics 21 4) {12)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year (1,168) (1,958)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 7,933 9.891
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 22 6,765 7.933
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 Accounting policies

General Information

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and is an exempt charity incorporated in England and Wales, The charitable
company’s memerandumn and articles of association are the primary governing dacuments of the Trust. The company
registralion number is N8090890.

The address of its registered and principal office is:
Unit 5

Charnwood CEdge Business Park

Svston Road

Cossington

Leicester

LE7 4UZ

Unit Kingdom

These financial statements cover the individual entity, St Thomas Aquinas Cathelic Multi Academy Trust only.

A summary of the principal accounting polivies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judzements and key sources of estimation uncertainty is set out below.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any malerial uncertaintics related to
events or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees
make this assesstnent in respect of a period of at least one year {rom the date ol authorisation for issue of the financial
statements and have concluded that the Trust has adequate resources Lo continue in operational existence for the foresecable
future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust’s ability to conlinue as a going concern, thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Inecome
All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the fands. the receipt is probable and the amount can
be measured reliably.

Granty

Geanls are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The batance of income received for specific
purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant. funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in
advance of mesting any performance-related conditivns, thers is not unconditional entitlement o the income and ils
recagnition is deferred and included in ercditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received. the income is accrued.

Creneral Annual Grant is recognised in full in Lhe Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any
abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement 1o the grant. Unspent amounls ol capital grants
are reflecled in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are spent on capital projects in line with the
teems and conditions of the grant. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of
the asser on which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivahle basis (where there are no performance-related condilions) where the receipt is
probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting pelicies {continued)

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the goods have been
provided or on completion of the service.

Donuated goods, facilities and services

The value of donated services and gifis in kind provided to the Trust are recognised at their open market value in the period in
which they are receivable ay incoming resources, where the benefil to the Academy Trust can be reliably measwred. An
equivalent amount is included as expenditure under the relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activities, except where
the gifl in kind was a lixed asset in which case the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated
over the useful economtic life in accordance with the Trust's policies.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Trust on conversion 1o an academy. the transterred assets are measured at fair
value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Trust. An equal
amount of income is recognised as lransfer on conversion within donations and capital grant income ta the net assets received,
Donated fixed assets

Allincaming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, certainly of receipt and the amount can be
measured with sulTicient reliabilicy,

Expenditure

All expenditure is recognised in the periad in which a liability is incurred and has been classified under headings that aggregate
all costs refated to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been zllocated on a
basis consistent with the use of resources, with central staff costs allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset’s use. Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of stalf costs.

All resources expended are inclusive of irecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds

Thesc arc costs incurred in atfracting voluntary income, and those incurred in trading activities that raise funds.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Trust’s educational operations.



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continved)

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5.000 or more are capitalised as tangible lixed assels and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impaivment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants. either from the
govertsnent or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet al cost and depreciated over their expected usetul
econemic Jife. The related grants are credited to a restricted (ixed asset fund in the Steement of Financial Activities and
carried forward in the balance sheel. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statemenc
of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the uselul economic lite ot the related asset on a basis cansistent with the
Academy Trust’s depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assels other than frechold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
assel over its expected usetul lives, per the table below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assels is not charged until they are brought inlo
usce.

A review for impairment ot a fixed asset is carried ourt if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
any fixed asser may not be recoverable. Shortfatls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amaunts are
recognised as impairments. Impairment lasses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activitics.

Long-term leasehold land and buildings:

The long-term leasehold land and buildings are held on a (23 year lease with Leicestershire County Couneil. They were
recognised as an asset on conversion and are being depreciated accordingly.

Premises nccupied under license:

The Trust also occupy premises under a license and as a result chis is not inctuded on the balance sheet. Any improvements t
these premises are included within leasehold improvements and are depreciated accordingly.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Long leaschold land and huildings straight line over 125 years
Leasehold Improvements straight line between 14 and 20 years
Furniture and equipment siraight line over 3 years

Computer cguipment straight line over 3 years

Motor vehicles straight line over 4 years

Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject W an insignificant. risk of change in value.

Liabilifies
All expenditure is recognised in the period in which a liability is incurred and has been classifted undor headings thal aggregate
all costs related to that category, Where costs cannot be divectly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated on a

basis consistent with the use of resources, with central stalf costs allocated on the basis of time spenl, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset’s use. Other suppoert costs are allocated based on the spread of stafl costs.

All resources expended are inclusive of rrecoverable VAT.

Provisions

These are costs incurred in attracting voluntary income, and those ineurred in trading activities that raise funds,

Leascd assets
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benelits and risks of ownersiip remain with the lessor are
charged to the Statement of Financial Aclivities on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The Trustis considered Lo pass the tests sel out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the
definitior. of' a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accardingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation
in respect of income or capital gains received within caregories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010
ar Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, ta the extent that such income or gains ave applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits o empioyees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (“TPS’") and the Local
Gavernment Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions
are caleuluted 50 as 1o spread the cost of pensions over employees® working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension
cast is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The cantributions are determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assels w assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined
coniribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employver scherne and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in separate Trustes
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using
the projected unit credit method and discounted at « rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term and currency to the liahilities. The actuarial valuativns are oblained at least triennially and are updated
at ¢ach balance sheel date. The amounts charged ‘o operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff cosls as incurred. Nel interest an
the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the inlerest cosl
on the defined beneiit obligation and interest income on the scheme assels, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the
scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual relum on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and
losses.

Actuarial gains and lnsses arc recognised immedialely in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the
Trust at the discretion of the governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources. which are o be applied Lo specitic capitai purposes imposed by funders, where the
assct acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the (under/donar and include
grants from the Department for Educatior Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated and are based on historical expericnee and other factors, including
expectations of future cvents that arc belicved (o be reasonable under the circumstances.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabililics within the next financial year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a varicty ol assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the nel cost (income} for
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying
amount of the pension liability, Furthermore 2 roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation pecformed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions lubility at 31sL August 2025, Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amaunt of the pension liability.

Agency accounting

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from ESFA and
subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financisl activitics as the rust does not have control
over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 0% of the allocation towards its own administration costs
and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities, The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed
in note 27.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset 2024/25 2023/24
fonds funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
Capital grants - 2,561 2,561 2360
Other donations 123 - 123 75
123 2,561 2.684 2,435
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy ‘I'rust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continwed)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Educational operations

DfE/ESFA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Teacher's Pay grant

16-19 Core Education Funding
Universal Infant Free School Meals
Teacher's Pension grant

Pupil Premium

Other DIE / ESFA grants

Core Schools Budget Grant

Other government
grants

Early Years

Other Local Authority Income
Other Government grants
High Needs / SEN

Non-government
grants and other income
Other income

Covid-19 additional funding (DIE/ESFA)

Recovery Premium
Total grants

Teaching school hub
DfE / ESFA Grants
Other income

Other government grants

Restricted
Unrestricted General 202425 2023724
Funds Funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
- 44,636 44,636 42,916
- 33 733 737
- 3,366 3,366 3,141
- 635 635 627
- 1.090 [,090 313
- 1.654 1,654 1.616
- 1,123 1,123 2,169
- 1,351 1,551 -
- 54,788 54,788 51,721
% 291 291 313
- 161 161 220
- 45 45 56
- 2,201 2,201 1,633
. 2,698 2,698 2244
830 92 922 8§79
- - - 334
830 57,578 58,408 55,178
. 222 227 236
- 240 240 289
280 ~ 280 210
280 462 742 735
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

4 Other trading activities

Hire of facilitics
Catering income
School shop sales
Insurance claims
Other income

5 Investment income

Short term depeosits

6 Resources expended

Expenditure on raising funds
Direct costs

Academy's educational
operations

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Teaching school hub
Teaching school hub - Direct costs

Teaching school hub - Allocared
support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating leases - other leases

Fees payable to auditor - audit
Internal audit services

Other assuance work

Depreciation of tangible fixed assels

Unrestricted Restricted 2024/25 2023724
funds funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 0400 £ 000 £000

132 - 132 149
1,173 - 1,173 994
17 - 17 17
347 138 485 3
945 - 945 873
2614 138 2,752 2.072
Unrestricted 2024/25 2023/24
funds Total Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000
298 298 350
Nan Pay Expenditure
2024/25 2023/24
Staff costs Premises Qther costs Total Total
£ 000 £ b0y £ 000 £ 000 £000
a i 31 51 39
32.152 - 4,670 36.822 34,188
17,723 5,897 3,685 27,305 26,080
72 - - 72 83
150 54 129 535 4351
50,297 5,951 8,533 64,783 60,841
2024725 202324
£000 £ 000
35 70
29 28
8 11
8 8
339 470
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

7 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Teaching and educational support staff costs
Educational supplies

Examination fees

Staff development

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Technoelogy costs

School lrips

Allocated support costs - educational operations

Support staff costs

LGPS Service cost adjustment
Depreciation

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Rent, rates and utilities

[nsurance

Recruitment and support

Catering

Bank interest and charges

Interest on defined benefit pension scheme
Protessional tees

Other support costs

Technology costs

Governance costs

2024/25 2023/24
£ 000 £000
32,152 29,752
707 885
549 504
114 116
355 455
1,480 1,047
572 466
893 963
36,822 34,188
18,531 14,732
(808) (684)
768 471
2,698 2,035
569 506
1,641 1.942
221 205
29 62
2,112 1.844
43 40
(202) (36)
23 564
176 220
855 1.131
50 48
27,305 26,080
64,127 60,268




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

8 Staff

Staff costs

StafT costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Pension costs

Supply teacher costs
Staff restructuring costs

Severance payments

The academy trust paid - severance payments in the vear disclosed in the {ollowing bands:

0-£25,000
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2024/25 202324
£ 000 £ 000
36,267 34.693
4,102 3,461
8,892 7.839
49,261 45,993
1,036 1.146
- 33
50,297 47172
2024/25 2023/24
No No
- 8




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Fnded 31 August 2025 (continued)

8 Staff (continued)

Non statutory/non-coutractnal staff severance paynents

Included in staft restruchiing costs There ave no non-statutorv/non-contractual sevsrance payments included in scaff

restructuring costs.

Staft numbers

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed hy the Trust during the year was as follows:

Charitable Actiyities
Teachers

Administration and support
Management

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose emoluments exceeded £60,000 was:

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £30,000
£80,001 - £90.000
£90,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£110.001 - £120,000
£130,001 - £160,000
£160,001 - £170,000

Key management personnel

2025 2024
No No
437 440
725 705
76 78
1,238 1,223
2025 2024
No No
36 30)
15 16
12 7
2 4
3 3
2 -
- 1
1 .

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team us Fsted on page 1. The
total amount of key management personnel benefits (inciuding employer pension contributions and employer national
insurance contributions) received by key munagement personnel for their services 10 the Academy Trust was £976,000 (2024:

£213.000),
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

9 Central services

From |st September 2021, the budget model, and in line with the funding agrecment, was revised to encapsulate GAG pooling,
As a result, central services were no longer charged separately to the local Academies. The Trust has provided the following
central and operational services to its Academies during the year:

- Finance and Accounting
- Payrall

- Inlernal and Exlernat Audit
- School Tmprovement

- Business Services

- Health and Safety

- Legal

-HR

- Education Psychatogy

- Safeguarding advice

- Chaplaincy advice

10 Related party transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses
The value of trustees™ remuncralion and other benelits was as {ollows:
Mrs I D Anderson {Exam invigilator):
Remuneration: £0 - £5.000 (2024 - £0 - £5,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £Nil (2024 - £Nil)
DE;-zi:g the year ended 31 Augusl 2023, Lhere were no travel and subsistence expenses reimbursed or paid divectly Trustees
(2024 - £Nil).

Other related party transactions involving the Truslees are set out in note 26,

11 Trustees' and officers' insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative o insurance where
UK governmentl funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from claims avising frotn negligent
acts, errars or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. 1t is not possible to
quantify the trustees’ and officers” indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

13 Dcbtors
2025 2024
£ 000 £ 000
Trade debtors 195 182
Prepayments g89 398
Accrued grant and other income 962 811
VAT recoverable 343 293
Other debtors 12 19
2,401 1,903
14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2025 2024
£000 £000
T'rade creditors 1.662 1,295
Other taxation and social security 867 724
Other creditors 96 86
Pension scheme creditor 1,032 975
Loans 2 4
Accruals 595 775
Deferred income 215 170
4,469 4,029
2025 2024
£ 000 £ 000
Deferred income
Deferred income at | September 2024 170 286
Resources deferred in the period 215 170
Amounts released trom previous periods (170) {286)
Deferred income at 31 August 2025 215 170

£50.000 (2024: £35,000) of delerred income relales Lo grants from the DiETocal authority received in advance. £65,000
(2024: £67.000) relates to the Teaching School Hub and £47,000 (2024: £50,000) relates to the Exemplary Leadership
Pragramme. The remaining deferred income of £53.000 (2024:£17.000) relates to income received in advance for lertings and

educational Trips and Visits.

Included in ereditors due within one year are Salix loans of £2,000 which were granted on the following terms:

- St Pawrick’s Pritnary School - interest free Joan for o period of 7 years from April 2019 - (ixed repayments are made every 6

months in arrears including the principal and interest until the loan is repaid.

[5 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

2025
£ 000

Loans

2024
£ 000
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Vear Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

L5 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year {continued)

Included in creditors due afier one year are Salix loans oF £Nil which werc granted on the following terms:

- St Patrick’s Primary School - interest free loan for a period of 7 years from April 2019 - fixed repayments are made every 6
months in arrears including the principal and interest until the loan is repaid.

16 Funds
Balance at 1
September Incoming Resources Gains, losses Balance at 31

2024 resources expended  and transfers August 2025

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ {400 £000
Restricted funds
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 149 48,002 (50,156) 2,005 -
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 4,498 (4,493} - -
Other Restricted - 690 (690) - -
Pupil Premium 268 1,654 (1,634) - 288
Universal Free School Meals 366 633 (631) - 370
Local Authority - 2,699 (2.699) - -
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/EFA capital grants 4937 2,550 (2.439) - 5,048
Capiral expenditure from GAG 303 - (233) 239 359
Inherited assets 5.593 - (168) - 5425
Capital income from the Niocese 764 - (50) - 714
Local Aullunity granls - Li 14) - ¥
Pension reserve funds
Pension reserve - - 1,011 (1,011) -
Total restricted funds 12,380 60,739 (62.190) 1,283 12,212
Unrestricted general funds
Unrestricted funds 2,246 4,143 (2.393) (2,294) 1.504
Total unrestricted funds 2,246 4,143 12,393) (2,294) 1.504
Total (unds 14,626 64,884 {64 783) (1,011) 13,716
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Mulii Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

16 Funds (continucd}
Comparative inlormalion in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at 1

September Incoming Resources Gains, losses  Balance at 31
2023 resources expended  and transfers August 2024
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000

Restricted funds
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 112 46,057 (48.463) 2,445 149
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 3,536 (3,536) - -
Other Restricted - 333 (333) - -
Pupil Premium 274 1,616 {1,622) - 268
Universal Free School Meals 371 627 {632) - 366
Lecal Authority « 2,244 (2.244) - -
Recovery premium et 334 (334) - -
Restricted fixed asset funds
DIE/EFA capital grants 4,193 2,313 (1,569) - 4,937
Capital expenditure from GAG 336 47 (135) 55 303
Inherited assets 5,747 - (154} - 5,593
Capital income from the Diocese 814 - (30) - 764
Pension reserve funds
Pension reserve - - 720 (720) -
Total restricted funds | [.847 al27 (58374 1,780 12.380
Unrestricted general funds
Unrestricted funds 3,370 3,643 (2,467) (2,5000 2,246
Total unrestricted funds 3.570 3.643 (2.467) (2.500) 2.246
Total funds 15417 60,770 (60.841) (720) 14.626
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

16 Funds (continued)

The specilic purposes for which the (unds are W be applied are as follows:
General Annuzl Granl (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Trust.

Other DIE / ESFA grants is made up of income for insurance costs, rates relief, teachers pay, leachers' pensions and Free
School Meal supplementary grant (FSM).

Pupil Premium may be spent for the educationai benefit of pupils registered at that Academy, or fur the benefit of pupils
registered at other Academies; and on community facilities i.e. services whose provision furthers any charitable purpose for the
benefit of pupils at the Academy or their families, or people who live or work in the locality in which the Academy is situaled.
The grant does not have to be completely spent by Academies in the period.

Universal [nfant Free Scheol meals income must be used to provide all pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2 with a free school
lunch.

School Condition Allocation (SCA) Funding is allocated to the Trust from the DIE. It's primary purpose is to address
significant building condition need and keeping Academy buildings safe and in good working order,

Devolved Formula Capital {DFC) cither allocated direct by the DIT or transferred on conversion from the Local Authority
must be spent an capital pusposes.

Unrestricted funds represents other incoming resources to the Trust applied for the general purposes of the Trust at the
discretion of the Trustees.

The inherited assets consist of the fixed assets transferred o the Trust on conversion ot Bishap Ellis [rom the Local Authority
and on transter of English Martyrs' Oalcham from St Therese of Lisieux Catholic Multi Academy Trust. The expenditure is the
depreciation of these assets during the year,

A Gansler ol £289,000 (2024: £55,00U) was made during the year to retlect capital additions bought using restricted general

funds. A Turther transfer of £2,388,000 (2024: £2,500,000) was made during the year from unrestricied funds to restricted
general funds representing accumulated generated tunds used to support restricted funds.

The Academy Trust is not subjecl to GAG carried forward limits.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

16 Funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 20235 were allocated as follows:

2025 2024
£000 £ 000
SI. Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust 2,162 3.029
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 2,162 3.029
Restricted fixed asset fund 11.554 11,597
Total 13,716 14,626
17 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balunces at 31 August 2023 are represented by:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Tangible fixed assets - - 9.019 9,019
Current assets 1,504 5,221 2,335 9.260
Current labilities - (4,563) - (4.563)
Toral net assets 1,504 638 11.554 13,716
Comparative information in respect ol the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Tangible fixed assels - - 8,821 8,821
Current assets 2246 4814 2,776 9,856
Current liabilities - (4,029) - {4.029)
Creditors aver | vear - {2) - (2)
Total net assets 2.246 783 11.397 14,626
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

18 Financial commitments

Operating leases

AL 31 August 2025 the total of the Trust's funure minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operaling leases was:

2025 2024

£ 000 £ 000

Amounts due within one year 37 55
Amounts due between one and five years 67 104
104 159

19 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

2024/25 2023/24
£ 000 £ 000
Net income/(expenditure) 101 (71)
Depreciation 768 470
Capital granls from DIE and other capital income (2,561) (2,360)
Intercst receivable {298) {350)
Defined benefit pension scheme service cost (308) (684)
Defined benefit pension scheme linance cost (203) (36)
Increase in debtors (498) (78)
Increasef{decrease) in creditors 442 (471)
Net cash used in Operating Activities (3,057) (3,580)
20 Capital expenditure and financial investment
2024125 2023/24
£000 £ (W0
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {966) (1.019)
Capital grants from D and other capital income 2,561 2,360
[nterest from investments 298 350
Assets under constructlion - (37)
Net cash provided by invesling activities 1,893 1.634
21 Cash flows from financing activities
2024125 2023/24
£ 000 £000
Repayments ot borrowing (4) (12)
Nert cash used in financing activities (4) (12)
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

22 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2025 2024
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bunk 6,765 7,935
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,765 7.933
23 Analysis of changes in net debt
At 1l
September At 31 Aungust
2024 Cash flows 2025
£000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 7,933 (1,168} 6,763
Loans falling due within one year (12) 8 (4)
Loans falling due after more than one ycar (2) 2 -
(14) 10 (4)
Total 7,919 (1,158) 6,761

24 Members' liability

Cach member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute Lo the assets of the company in the event af it being wound
up while he/she is a member, or within one year after hefshe ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before hefshe ceases to be & member.

25 Pension and similar abligations

The Trust's employees belong to twe principal pension schemes: the I'eachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales {IPS) for
academic and related stall; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) tor non-teaching staff, which is managed by
Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS rclated to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the period ended 31
March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £(1.032.167) (2024 - £(975.284)) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and are included
within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory. defined benefil scheme, governed by the Teachers™ Pension

Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in Academies. All teachers have the option 1o opt-out of the
TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme W which bolh the member and employer makes cortributions, as a percentage of salary - these
contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by
Parliament.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts & formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with
Puhlic Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The
aim of the review is Lo ensurc scheme costs are recognised and managed appropriately and the review speeifics the level of
future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of futare costs. design of
henefitg and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS wag carried oul as at 31 March 2020, The valuation
veport was published by the Department tor Education on 27 October 2023 with the SCAPE rute. set by HMT. applying a
notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPT.

The key elements of the valuation and oulcome are:

«  employer contribution rates set at 28.68% ol pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy) This is an increase of
5% in employer contributions and the cost cantrol result is such that no change in member benefils is needed.

+ total scheme labilitics (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the elfective
date of £262,000 million and notional assets (cstimated future contributions wgether with the notional investments held at
the valuation date) of £222.200 millien. giving a notional past service delicit ol £39,800 million

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next valuation result is due o be implemented from 1
April 2027.

The emplover's persion costs paid w TPS in the period amounted to £6,548,000 (2024: £5,562.000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions websile.

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reparting Standard 102 (FRS 102), the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme,
The Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and labilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy trust has
taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a delined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set aut above the information available on the scheme.

Local Gavernment Pension Schemes

The LLGPS is a tunded defined-benefit scheme. with the assets held in separate lrustee-administered funds. The total
contribution made for the year ended 3] August 2025 was £3.803,000 (2024 - £3.721,000), of which employer's cantributions
totalled £3.073.000 (2024 - £3.002.000) and employees' conlributions totalled £732.000 {2024 - £719.000). The agreed
contribution rates for future years are 24.4% per cent for employers and 5.5% to 12.3% per cent for emplayees. The scheme is
managed by Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State tor Education. to & guarantee that, in the event of an Academy
Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilitics would be met by the Department for Education. The
guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffinmed ils commitment to
the guarantee, wita a parliamentary minule published on GOV.UK,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2025 2024

%o %%

Rare of increase in salaries 3.20 3.20
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation 2.70 2.70
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 6.10 5.00

The current mortality assumptions include suificient allowance for future improvements in the mortality rates. The assumed
{ile expectations on retirement. age 65 arc:

2025 2024
Retiring today
Males retiring today 20.80 20.60
Females retiring today 23.90 23.80
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 21.00 20.80
Females reriring in 20 vears 25.10 25.10
Sensitivity analysis

2025 2024

£ 000 £ 000
Discount rate -0. 1% 729 857
Mortality assumption — 1 year increase 1,445 1,589
CPI rate +0.1% 36 833
Salary increase rate +0.1% 716 42
The academny trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

2025 2024

£000 £000
Equities 26.563 22.569
Other bonds 16,347 14,756
Property 3.065 2.604
Cash 3,108 3,472
Total market valuc of asscls 51,083 43,401

The actual return on scheme assets was £4.488,000 (2024 - £4.364.000).

Page 54



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continucd)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the statcement of financial activities

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amaunt recognised in the SOFA

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At start of period
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial {gain)loss
Benefits paid

Pasl service cost

At 31 August

Changes in the (air value of academy's share of scheme assets:

At start of period
Interest income
Actuarial gainf{loss)
Employer contributions
Employee comtributions
Benefits paid

Assel ceiling adjustment

At 31 August

Page 53

2024/25 2023/24
£000 £000
{2,274) (2.318)

(91) -
2247 1.953
{2,044) (1.917)
(2,162} (2,282}

2024/25 2023/24
£000 £000
39.721 35,765
2,274 2318
2,044 1.917
734 719
(8,038) (208)
(713) (790)
91 =
36,113 39,721
2024/25 2023/24
£ 000 £000
39.721 35,765
2,247 1,953
2,241 2411
3,173 3.002
734 719
(713) (790)
11,290 3.339
58.693 46,399




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

26 Related party transactions

Expenditure related party transactions

During the year the Trust made the following related party transactions:
Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Education Service (NRCDES)

RtRev P McKinney is a Member of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and a Trustee of NRCDES, NRCDES
supports schools to ensure that they are successful and act in accordance with the Trust Deed of the Diocese. This involves
advice and direclion being given on a broad range of educational matters such as RE and curriculum issues, Catholic Life of a
school. staffing and recruilment, governance, admissions, and capital developments.

During the year. the Trust paid £147.298 (2024:£144,561) to NRCDES tor the advice and direction as outlined above. At 31
August 2025, the amounts due to NRCDES were £610 (2024: £255). At 31 August 2023, no amounts were due from NRCDES
(2024 £nil)

The Academy Trust Handbook confirms that contribulions made by an Academy Trust o its Diocese for services it receives
associated with sceuring the Academy Trust’s religious character and ethos. which only the Diocese can provide, are regarded
as meeting the “at cost’ requirement. The admissions appeals ¢lement has been provided 'at no mere than cost' and NRCDES
has provided a statement of assurance confirming this. [n entering the Iransaction, the Trust has complied with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbaok,

Our L.ady of Lourdes Catholic Maualti-Academy Trust

The Members of §¢ Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi-Academy Trust
are the same (see page 1 for details). Our Trusts have a shared Director of People, Payroll team. and HR, Payroll and Finance
system, an arrangement that starced in 2018.

During the year, the Trust paid £217.635 (2024: £470,071) 1o Our Tady ol Lourdes Catholic Multi-Academy Trust. At 31
August 2025, £6,789 was due to Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi-Academy Trust (2024: £60,275).

This arrangement was put in place prior to 1 April 2019, however the amounts charged are ‘at cost” and evidence above and
beyond a statement of assurance is provided to show how the cost has beer determined. (n entenng into the transaction, the
Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbaok,

Nottingham Diocesan Catholic Youth Service (NDCYS)

Rt Rev P McKinney is a Member of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Muld Academy Trust and a Trustee of NDCYS. NDCYS
provides a Cathalic retreat centre (Briars) for student Lips thal is located wilkin the Diocese of Nottingham. Schools determine
what trips are oflered cach year, and whether to include a trip to the Briars or not.

During the year. the Trust paid £89.706 (2024: £80,425) to NDDCYS for trips as outlined above, At 31 August 20235 the amount
due 1o NDCY S was E10.880 (2024 £2,939).

In enlering the transaction, the Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook. The element above
£2,500 has been provided ‘at no more than cost' and NDCYS has provided a statement of assurance canfirming this.

St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Mulii Academy Trust

The Members ol St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Multi-Academy Trust are
the same (see page 1 for details). Sarah Noon is 4 Foundation Director of St Thomas Aquinas Cutholic Multi Academy Frust
and ol $L Ralph Sherwin Catholic Multi Academy Trust.

During the year. the Trust paid £nil (2024:£0il) to St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Multi Academy Trust. At 31 August 2023, £780
was due rom St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Multi Academy Trust (202:4: £419).
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26 Related party transactions {continued)

Income relaied party transactiony

During the year the Trust made the following related parly transactions:

Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Education Service

Rt Rev P MeKinney is a Member of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and a Trustee of NRCDES.

During the year, the Trust received income totling £6.920 {2024: £6,9200. At 31 August 2023, the amoeunt due from
Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Education Service (NRCDES) was £nil (2024 - £320).

Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi Academy Trust

The Members of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Muld Academy Trust and Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Mult-Academy Trusc
are the same (sce page 1 for details). Our Trust puls on aining courses and events and provides services through the Teaching
School Hub for other Schools, Academies and Trusts.

During the year, the Trust received income lolaling £12,812 (2024 £14,514). Ac 31 August 2023, the amount due trom Our
Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi-Academy Trust was £1,760 (2024: £669).

St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Multi Academy Trust

The Members of $t Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Mulli Academy Trust
were the same (see page | for details). Our Trust puts on craining courses and events and provides services through the
Teaching School Hub for other Schools, Academies and Trusts,

During the year, the Trusl received income totaling £11,733 (2024: £4.338). At 31 August 2025, £675 was due to St Ralph
Sherwin Catholic Multi Academy Trust (2024: £419).

Nottingham Roman Catholic Dioceszn Trustees

The Trust oceupies land (including buildings) which are owned by its Trustees who are the Nottingham Roman Catholic
Diocesan Trustees. The Trusiees are the providers of 8¢ Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust . The Trust occupies
the Tand (and buildings) under a mere licence. This continuing permission of their Diocese Trustees is pursuant to, and subject
10, the Trustees’ charitable objects, and is pait of the Catholic Church’s contribution since 1847 to provide State funded
education in partnership with the State. The licence delegates aspects of the management ol the land (and buildings) to the
Trust for the time being, but does not vest any rights over the land in the Trust. The Trustees have given an undertaking to the
Secretary of State that they will not give the Trust less than two years nolice to terminate the occupation of the land (including
buildings). Having cansidered the factual matix under which the Trust is occupying the land {and buildings) the Trusiees have
concluded that the value ol the land and buildings occupied by the Trust will nat be recognised on the balance sheet of the
Trast.

27 Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for DE. In the accounting period ending 31 August
2025 the academy trust received £36,785 and disbursed £23.028 trom the fund. As at 31 August 2023, the cumulative unspent
16-19 bursary fund is £79,341 of which £22 983 relating to undistributed funds thal is repayable o DIE.

Comparatives for the accounting period ending 31 August 2024 are £50,033 received, £23.255 disbursed, toral cumulative
unspent funding of £67,946 of which £22,361 was repayable to DFE.
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